
MEETING: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
AND HEALTH)

DATE: Tuesday, 19th October 2021

TIME: 6.30 p.m.

VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle

Member

Councillor

Substitute

Councillor
Cllr. Carla Thomas (Chair)
Cllr. Greg Myers (Vice-Chair)
Cllr. Iain Brodie - Browne
Cllr. Linda Cluskey
Cllr. Sean Halsall
Cllr. David Irving
Cllr. Terry Jones
Cllr. John Joseph Kelly
Cllr. Nina Killen
Cllr. Michael Roche
Brian Clark, Healthwatch
Roger Hutchings, Healthwatch

Cllr. Anne Thompson
Cllr. Robert Brennan
Cllr. Dr. John Pugh
Cllr. Andrew Wilson
Cllr. Christine Howard
Cllr. Maria Bennett
Cllr. Joe Riley
Cllr. Paul Tweed
Cllr. Veronica Webster
Cllr. Christine Maher

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Debbie Campbell, Senior Democratic Services 
Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 2254
Fax: 0151 934 2034
E-mail: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk

See overleaf for COVID Guidance and the 
requirements in relation to Public Attendance.

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



COVID GUIDANCE IN RELATION TO PUBLIC ATTENDANCE

In light of ongoing Covid-19 social distancing restrictions, there is limited 

capacity for members of the press and public to be present in the meeting 

room indicated on the front page of the agenda at any one time.  We 

would ask parties remain in the meeting room solely for the duration of 

consideration of the Committee report(s)  to which their interests relate.

We therefore request that if you wish to attend the Committee to please 

register in advance of the meeting via email to 

debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk  by no later than 12:00 (noon) on the 
day of the meeting.
 

Please include in your email –

 Your name;

 Your email address;

 Your Contact telephone number; and

 The details of the report in which you are interested.

In light of current social distancing requirements, access to the meeting 

room is limited.

We have been advised by Public Health that Members, officers and 
the public should carry out a lateral flow test before attending the 
meeting, and only attend if that test is negative. Provided you are not 
classed as exempt, it is requested that you wear a mask that covers 
both your nose and mouth.

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 14)
Minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2021.

4.  Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust (Pages 15 - 
20)

Ann Marr, Chief Executive; and Anne-Marie Stretch, 
Managing Director, Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS 
Trust, to attend to give a presentation.

A report detailing the latest Care Quality Commission 
Improvement Plan Report received by the Southport and 
Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust Quality & Safety Committee 
(QSC) in June 2021, is attached for information.

5.  Adult Safeguarding (Pages 21 - 
26)

Report of the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and 
Health.

6.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report (Pages 27 - 
32)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group.



7.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider 
Performance Dashboard

(Pages 33 - 
40)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

8.  Cabinet Member Reports (Pages 41 - 
54)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer.

9.  Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan (Pages 55 - 
74)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer.



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL IN”.

13

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, SOUTHPORT
ON TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

PRESENT: Councillor Myers (in the Chair)
Councillors Brodie - Browne, Cluskey, 
John Joseph Kelly, Killen and Roche

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. B. Clark, Healthwatch Representative
Mr. R. Hutchings, Healthwatch Representative
Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member – Adult Social 
Care

17. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Halsall and his 
Substitute Councillor Howard; Councillor Irving and his Substitute 
Councillor Bennett; Councillor Jones and his Substitute Councillor Riley; 
Councillor Thomas; and Councillor Moncur, Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing.

18. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received.

19. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meetings held on 22 June and 27 July 2021, be 
confirmed as a correct record.

20. CURRENT CHALLENGES FACED BY DENTISTRY IN LIGHT OF 
THE COVID 19 PANDEMIC 

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Primary Care, NHS 
England and NHS Improvement (NHSEI) on the current challenges faced 
by dentistry in light of the Covid-19 pandemic and the impact this is having 
on service delivery.

The report set out the background to the matter, together with the current 
position, in that some practices were not yet able to offer the full range of 
services that they would want to at this point in time. The report concludes 
that current infection prevention and control arrangements would continue 
to prevent a return to pre-pandemic practice, and that income protection 
measures to support the restoration of the service would be retained.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

14

Mr. Tom Knight, Head of Primary Care, NHS England and NHS 
Improvement North West (Cheshire and Merseyside), attended the 
meeting to provide up-to-date information and to respond to questions on 
the matter.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 How information was communicated to the public in the event that 
they were unable to access dental services, particularly for those 
people who did not use IT.

 Information on Urgent Dental Centres (UDCs) in Sefton, including 
numbers, sharing of data, the non-permanent nature of UDCs, and 
the return to routine care and funding.

 Private dental care and the lack of NHS facilities in parts of the 
Borough.

 Queries and complaints received by Healthwatch Sefton on the lack 
of NHS dental appointments available in recent months.

 The ability for certain early stage cancers to be detected early at 
routine dental appointments.

 Disappointment that there was no UDC in Southport.

RESOLVED:

That the report on the current challenges faced by dentistry in light of the 
Covid-19 pandemic and the impact this is having on service delivery, be 
noted.

21. SEFTON INTEGRATED CARE HOME STRATEGY 

The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult 
Social Care and Health that presented the Sefton Integrated Care Home 
Strategy 2021-24 that would be submitted to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board for approval. The report set out the rationale and development of 
the strategy; key themes and objectives within the Strategy; and delivery 
of the Strategy and governance arrangements. The report concluded that 
the Strategy had been produced as part of a joint commitment to further 
Adult Social Care and Health integrated working in this sector to ensure 
that it continued to meet the needs of the Sefton population and would be 
a key part of the delivery of the emerging Integrated Care Partnership.

Appendix A to the report set out the Sefton Integrated Care Home Strategy 
2021-24 and Appendix B to the report set out the governance and delivery 
arrangements for the Strategy.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 The resources required to maintain the commitment to keep people 
in their own home.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

15

 Continuing care and the need to involve Healthwatch Sefton.
 The need for an effective, trained workforce and the use of agency 

staff.
 The impact of Brexit on the care home sector and the importance of 

reporting this aspect.
 The “market” aspect of the care home sector, although a significant 

part of the market was not for profit.
 Understanding the full costs of care.
 Preventative measures required, including falls, etc.
 The mandatory nature of covid jabs for care home staff, although 

this was not mandatory for agency staff.
 The overall strategy to keep people out of care homes and in their 

own homes, wherever possible.
 The importance of care closer to home.

RESOLVED:

(1) the Sefton Integrated Care Home Strategy 2021-24 be noted; and

(2) the Governance and Delivery Structure for the Strategy be noted, 
together with the intention for further reports to be submitted to the 
Committee throughout the life of the Strategy in order to provide 
updates on the delivery of the Strategy.

22. SEFTON INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP DEVELOPMENT 

Further to Minute No. 9 of the Health and Wellbeing Board on 9 June 
2021, the Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of 
Adult Social Care and Health presenting the latest position with regards to 
steps to develop a Sefton Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) following 
approval from the Cabinet in April 2021. Since being submitted to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board, the report had been updated slightly to reflect 
a change in terminology following the publication of the Health and Care 
Bill in July 2021. The report set out the background to the matter, together 
with milestones for Sefton ICP development; progress of the Sefton ICP; 
key deliverables; expectations from the Integrated Care System; and 
governance and accountability.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 How matters would work under the Cheshire and Merseyside 
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP).

 Funding under the ICP.
 The frequency of reforms under health and social care and how 

effective the current reforms would be.
 The importance of involvement by Overview and Scrutiny in terms 

of accountability.
 Sefton was considered to be a leader in terms of integration.

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

16

RESOLVED:

(1) the contents of the report be received, and comments by Members 
be noted; and

(2) oversight be provided by the Committee on the direction of travel 
and decisions regarding the Integrated Care Partnership, as they 
develop.

23. MENTAL HEALTH ISSUES WORKING GROUP FINAL REPORT 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer presenting formally the final report of the Mental Health Issues 
Working Group. The final report of the Mental Health Issues Working 
Group was attached to the report. 

Mr. Roger Hutchings, co-opted Member representing Healthwatch Sefton, 
presented the report.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 Progress was still required to ensure that the term “parity of 
esteem” regarding mental health awareness was fully integrated 
into all aspects of health discussion.

 A great deal of work had been undertaken in terms of mental health 
in recent years, although further progress was always welcomed.

 Health and safety covered all working conditions, including mental 
health.

 The number of mental health first aiders within the Council, 
compared to first aiders was requested.

RESOLVED:

That the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health be requested 
to develop an action plan that incorporates the following recommendations 
and that the recommendations are taken forward into commissioning 
plans:

A. support the development of accurate data to evidence Key 
Performance Indicators, to include waiting times for services and 
customer satisfaction, to be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Adult Social Care and Health) on a regular basis, in the 
form of a dashboard;

B. support the development of greater parity of esteem for mental 
health within the Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy and other 
strategic documents;

C. consider methods of increasing feedback from service users, to 
include case studies and a “secret shopper” approach, in order to 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

17

encourage an approach of continuous improvement for service user 
experience;

D. consider methods of increasing service user involvement, 
particularly in their own crisis planning, in anticipation of reforms to 
the Mental Health Act;

E. consider methods of encouraging service users to become “experts 
by experience”, particularly through the use of Mersey Care 
facilities such as the Life Rooms and Crisis Cafes;

F. support the development of Integrated Care Systems for a more 
holistic approach to issues that can impact on mental health, such 
as housing, addiction, complex lives issues, etc.;

G. support the inclusion of approaches adopted during the pandemic, 
such as the use of video technology, within the development of the 
Technology Enabled Care Services Strategy;

H. undertake a review of some of the services traditionally provided, in 
the light of alternative services provided and service user take-up of 
those services, during the pandemic;

I. submit a report on the work and outcome of the Sefton Mental 
Health Review Task and Finish Group, set up between the Council, 
CCG’s, Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust and the voluntary 
sector, to the to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social 
Care and Health), in due course;

J. review digital entry points for service users to access the Council’s 
mental health services, in order to ensure that access is as 
straightforward as possible via the Council’s website and that links 
to other organisations are readily available;

K. submit a report on the work undertaken in relation to transitions 
from children’s services to adult services, to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health), in due course 
to include care leavers and other vulnerable user groups;

L. review the Directory of Services available, in order to produce a 
map of services, to assist service users to navigate the system;

M. report progress regarding the formal assessment of diagnosis for 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities/Autism Spectrum 
Disorder conditions in young people aged 18-25 and adults, within 
the six-monthly monitoring report, on the outcome of additional 
funding and training of staff provided by Mersey Care NHS 
Foundation Trust and the Clinical Commissioning Groups for the 
reduction of waiting times for diagnosis;

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

18

2. that the Senior Democratic Services Officer be requested to liaise 
with relevant officers in order to ensure that the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health) receives a six-
monthly monitoring report, setting out progress made against each 
of the recommendations outlined above; and

3. that the relevant officers be requested to provide numbers of mental 
health first aiders within the Council, compared to first aiders.

24. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - UPDATE 
REPORT 

The Committee considered the joint report of the NHS South Sefton 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and the NHS Southport and Formby 
CCG, that provided an update about the work of the CCGs. The report 
outlined details of the following:

 Covid-19 Vaccination Programme;
 Annual Flu Vaccinations;
 Changing Commissioning Landscape;
 Sefton Mental Health Review;
 Changes at Cheshire Merseyside Health and Care Partnership;
 Continued Covid-19 Measures in Healthcare Settings;
 General Practice Update;
 Patient Experience;
 Specialist Cancer Clinics at Ormskirk Hospital;
 Engagement Report Published on North Mersey Blood Cancer 

Proposals;
 Collection of GP Data for Planning and Research Paused;
 Invitation to Virtual “Big Chat” Annual Reviews; and
 Governing Body Meetings.

Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer for the Sefton CCGs, attended the meeting to 
present the update report and to respond to questions raised by Members 
of the Committee.

Further to Minute No. 8 (2) of 22 June 2021, a verbal update was provided 
on Hightown Village GP Surgery and issues regarding access.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 Clarification was sought regarding numbers of covid vaccinations 
provided. Additional information could be provided.

 When specialist cancer clinics would return in the Southport area.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the update report submitted by the Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Groups, be received; and

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

19

(2) the Chief Officer, NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby CCG be requested to 
provide clarification regarding numbers of covid vaccinations 
provided.

25. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - HEALTH 
PROVIDER PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 

The Committee considered the joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG), that provided data on key performance 
areas, together with responses for the Friends and Family Test for both 
Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust and Liverpool University 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. Information on the monitoring of the 7-day 
GP extended access scheme for both CCGs was included within the data. 

Further to Minute No. 16 of 27 July 2021, performance on ambulance 
turnaround times at Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust was 
included within the data.

Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer for the Sefton CCGs, attended the meeting to 
present the update report and to respond to questions raised by Members 
of the Committee.

Further to Minute No. 16 of 27 July 2021, Mrs. Taylor undertook to obtain 
travel time from Southport to Aintree Hospital from the North West 
Ambulance Service.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 Difficulties in reading ambulance turnaround times within the data.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the information on Health Provider Performance be noted; and

(2) the Chief Officer for the Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups be 
requested to obtain information on travel times from Southport to 
Aintree Hospital from the North West Ambulance Service.

26. CABINET MEMBER REPORTS 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer submitting the most recent update reports from the Cabinet 
Member – Adult Social Care, and the Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing, whose portfolios fall within the remit of the Committee.

The Cabinet Member update report – Adult Social Care, attached to the 
report at Appendix A, outlined information on the following:

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

20

 Care Homes – Vaccination Update;
 Adult Social Care Budget:

o External grants; and
o Fee consultations;

 Launch of Sefton’s Adult Safeguarding Board;
 Operational Pressures;
 Mental Health Services:
 Sefton Mental Health Review
 Performance;
 Integration and National Policy Update;
 Complaints Update:

o General Overview;
o Ombudsman Annual Review Letter;
o Complaints Upheld;
o Compliance with Recommendations; and
o Satisfactory Remedy Provided by the Authority.

The Cabinet Member update report – Health and Wellbeing, attached to 
the report at Appendix B, outlined information on the following:

 Covid-19 Update;
 Adult Weight Management;
 Allocation of National Drugs Funding for Additional Drug Treatment 

Crime & Harm Reduction Activity in 2021/22;
 NHS Health Checks;
 Seasonal Influenza;
 Dunes SplashWorld;
 Leisure Update;
 Leisure Annual Report;
 Litherland Sports Pitch; and
 Communities Risk Register.

Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care, attended the 
meeting, to present his report and to respond to any questions.

Councillor Moncur, Cabinet Member - Health and Wellbeing, submitted his 
apologies for the meeting.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 The number of care homes within the Borough.
 If any developments were taking place within the Council to support 

complaint and service improvement.

RESOLVED:

That the update reports from the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care and 
the Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing be noted.

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

21

27. WORK PROGRAMME KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer reviewing the Committee’s Work Programme for the remainder of 
2021/22; reporting on progress of the Mental Health Issues Working 
Group; proposing a piece of work on the Integrated Care Partnership; 
identifying any items for pre-scrutiny by the Committee from the latest Key 
Decision Forward Plan; receiving an update on the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and noting the 
update from Healthwatch Sefton.

The Work Programme for 2021/22 was set out at Appendix A to the report, 
to be considered, along with any additional items to be included and 
agreed. The Terms of Reference for the Committee were set out at 
Appendix B to the report.

The report set out progress to date made by the Mental Health Issues 
Working Group.

The report set out a proposal for a piece of work on the Integrated Care 
Partnership to be undertaken by Committee Members.

There were two Decisions within the latest Key Decision Forward Plan, 
attached to the report at Appendix D, that fell under this Committee’s 
remit, and the Committee was invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny.

The report outlined recent activity undertaken by the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and set out an 
update on recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton, as attached 
to the report at Appendix E.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issue:

 The recent announcement regarding reforms to social care finding.

RESOLVED:

(1) the Work Programme for 2020/21, as set out in Appendix A to the 
report, be agreed;

(2) the following additional item be added to the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2021/22:

 The Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health be 
requested to submit a report on the recent announcement regarding 
reforms to social care finding, to a future meeting of the Committee;

(3) the progress made by the Mental Health Issues Working Group be 
noted;

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2021

22

(4) rather than establish a traditional working group during 2021/22, all 
Members of the Committee be invited to participate in undertaking a 
piece of work on the Integrated Care Partnership;

(5) the contents of the Key Decision Forward Plan for the period 1 
September – 31 December 2021, be noted;

(6) the update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee be noted; and

(7) the recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton, as outlined 
in Appendix E to the report, be noted.

Page 14

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 
 

Title of Meeting QUALITY AND SAFETY COMMITTEE Date 28 June 2021 

Agenda Item  FOI Exempt NO 

Report Title CQC UPDATE 

Executive Lead  Bridget Lees, Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Therapies 

Lead Officer Simon Regan, Deputy Director of Quality, Risk and Assurance 

Action Required 
 

 To Approve 

✓ To Assure 

 To Note 

 To Receive 

Purpose 

To provide an update on progress against the action plan following the recent CQC inspection and other 
engagement with CQC. 

Executive Summary 

The report provides an update on the Care Quality Commission (CQC) action plan following the 
unannounced focussed inspection at the Trust on 3rd March 2021.  
 
CQC identified seven actions we ‘should do’ to prevent the Trust from failing to comply with legal 
requirements in the future. However, it’s positive to note that there were no ‘must do’ actions or 
breaches of regulation identified.  

The seven should do recommendations have been reviewed and actions identified to demonstrate 
continuing improvement. In addition, there have been 10 actions completed in the Medicine division 
following positive external assurance as part of the inspection. 
 
A date is being sought for a quality assurance panel to finalise updates on all actions. 
 

Recommendations  

The Quality & Safety Committee is asked to note current position of the action plan. 

Previously Considered By: 

 Finance, Performance & Investment Committee  

 Remuneration & Nominations Committee 

 Charitable Funds Committee 

 Quality & Safety Committee 

 Workforce Committee  

 Audit Committee 

Strategic Objectives  

✓ SO1 Improve clinical outcomes and patient safety to ensure we deliver high quality services 

✓ SO2 Deliver services that meet NHS constitutional and regulatory standards 

 SO3 Efficiently and productively provide care within agreed financial limits 

✓ SO4 Develop a flexible, responsive workforce of the right size and with the right skills who feel 
valued and motivated 

✓ SO5 Enable all staff to be patient-centred leaders building on an open and honest culture and 
the delivery of the Trust values 

✓ SO6  Engage strategic partners to maximise the opportunities to design and deliver sustainable 
services for the population of Southport, Formby and West Lancashire 

Prepared By: Presented By: 

Simon Regan  Simon Regan 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 
 
 

Care Quality Commission (CQC) Update – June 2021 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
The Care Quality Commission (CQC) carried out an inspection at the Trust between 10th 
July 2019 and 1st August 2019 and a well-led inspection between 20th and 22nd August 2019. 
The subsequent inspection report was published on 29 November 2019 where the Trust 
received a rating of Requires Improvement (RI).  
 
An improvement plan was developed following the outcome of the inspection and progress 
has been monitored at Quality and Safety Committee and Trust Board. 
 
CQC carried out and unannounced responsive inspection at the Trust on 3rd March 2021 
and CQC published the inspection report on 13th May 2021. A copy of the full report was 
provided to the committee at the last meeting. 
 
There were no breaches of regulation identified. However, there were 7 actions the CQC 
recommend the Trust should take.   
 
This report provides an update on progress against the action plan following the 2019 
inspection and additional ‘should do’ recommendations following the inspection in March 
2021. 
 
2. OVERVIEW OF INSPECTION FINDINGS 
 
During this inspection, the Trust was inspected but not rated. The unannounced focused 

inspection was undertaken following information of concern received from the public. 

The inspection was focussed on the Medical Care core service which includes medical 

wards and departments. 

The inspectors noted in the report that:  

• Patients are treated with compassion and kindness and their privacy and dignity is 
respected, and takes account of their individual needs 

• Safety incidents are investigated and any resulting actions are implemented and 
monitored, and lessons learned are appropriately shared 

• Staff say they feel respected, supported and valued and can raise concerns without 
fear 

• Leaders have the skills and abilities to run the service, and patients and staff think 
they are approachable 

• A small number of instances had been identified where a family had not been 
involved in meaningful conversation about their relative’s care and treatment, 
however a recent audit demonstrated improvements in this area 

• Assessments around the risks of patients falling have improved since the last 
inspection and staff identify and act upon patients at risk from their health further 
deteriorating, however staff don’t always update risk assessments for each patient 

• The service does not always have enough substantive medical staff, although locum 
and bank staff and new roles have been created to keep patients safe until long-term 
recruitment can be resolved 

• Consultants lead daily ward rounds and are on site at weekends, with on-call 
consultants available during out of hours periods - an improvement in cover since the 
last inspection 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



• Nursing, medical, and other health professionals were found to keep separate patient 
records, but it was noted the Trust is continuing towards implementing electronic 
patient records to support record-keeping 

• Patients have enough food and drink to meet their needs and improve their health, 
however inspectors found staff don’t always complete patient fluid charts, although 
this has improved from the last inspection 

• Staff provide emotional support and understand patients’ personal needs and had 
provided contact with families and carers while visiting had ceased during the 
pandemic 

• Complaints are treated seriously, patients are included in the investigation of their 
complaint, and lessons are shared with all staff 

 
Outstanding practice 

The medical care service had undertaken a quality improvement project in partnership with 

the local hospice to look at how fundamental care could be improved, based on the ethos of 

individualised patient centred care as experienced on the Oasis ward during wave one of 

Covid-19.  

The remit of the team was to support staff and develop skills in relation to the delivery of the 

fundamentals of care and help develop holistic patient centred care as experienced on the 

Oasis ward. The Oasis team was also supporting the review and launch of the Care 

Certificate. 

Areas for improvement 

In the report, CQC identified seven areas for improvement where they identified the Trust 

‘should’ take action. An overview is presented below of the actions against those areas and 

how they will be monitored (in Green). 

The Trust should continue to improve the review of patient risk assessments.  
 
This programme of work will be taken forward as part of the Trust quality priority 
programmes for 2021-22. 
 

The trust should continue to improve the involvement of patients and their families in 
decisions regarding care and treatment where DNACPR is considered. 
 
The Trust will continue the improvement work through 2021-22 via the Resuscitation 
Committee which demonstrated an improvement in DNACPR decision-making in 
January 2021. 
 

The Trust should continue towards electronic patient records to promote accuracy of holistic 
record keeping.  
 
The Trust has revised and implemented its Digital Strategy and has introduced an 
integrated communication platform for any web device to promote delivering faster 
clinical communication, improved governance, better collaboration and safer care. 
 

The Trust should continue to improve discharge arrangements to ensure safe patient 
discharge.  
 
The Trust has initiated quality improvement events on safer discharge of patients 
during Q4 developing a revised discharge checklist, improved communication with 
provider stakeholders and patients; quality discharge forums with providers and 
follow up welfare checks of patients after discharge. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



The Trust should continue to act to address the high number of registered and unregistered 
nursing vacancies.  
 
By the end of 2020/21, we have achieved the most improved vacancy rate for 
registered and non-registered nursing and midwifery staffing roles for several years. 
The international nurse recruitment work has supported this and we are on track to 
realise 92 nurses by the end of June 2021. However, we recognise the Covid-19 
pandemic has led to some delays. 
 

The Trust should continue to improve the assessment of the nutrition and hydration needs of 
patients including the accurate completion of fluid and nutrition charts.  
 
This action has been carried forward as one of the quality priorities programme of 
work for 2020-21. 
 

The Trust should continue to address the number of medical staffing vacancies across the 
medical care service.  
 
During 2020-21 we have significantly reduced the number of medical vacancies, 
starting with 59, and ending the year with 27.  Whilst this is a significant achievement, 
we need to ensure that we maintain the focus on filling these vacancies and are 
working a number of methods to generate applicants. This has involved working with 
partner organisations to generate joint posts with academic elements, extending the 
number of recruitment agencies we work with to source candidates for our difficult to 
fill roles and exploring how we can offer development opportunities to develop the 
talent within the organisation for the future. 
 

 
 
3. PROGRESS AGAINST OVERARCHING ACTION PLAN 
 
As a result of the inspection, we have reviewed the full report and current position alongside 
the 2019 action plan to recognise some of the positive external assurances following this 
inspection. 
 
Seven new actions have been added as a result of the recent CQC inspection and actions 
are being taken as shown above. A status update is provided below subject to validation at 
the Quality Assurance Panel.  
 
A date is being sought for a quality assurance panel to finalise updates on all actions and 
get a full update on all other actions. 
 
 April 2021 May 2021  

Change 
Rating 

Must 

Do 

Should 

Do 
Total 

Must 

Do 

Should 

Do 
Total 

Completed 6 48 54 11 53 64 +10 

Progressing on schedule 24 41 65 19 43 62 -3 

Slightly delayed and/or of 

low risk 
1 3 4 1 3 4  

Significantly delayed and/or 

of high risk 
0 0 0 0 0 0  

TOTAL 31 92 123 31 99 130 +7 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



 
4. CQC ENGAGEMENT  
 
We continue to have regular engagement meetings with the CQC via MS Teams and we 

recently met with CQC on 10th June 2021. At the meeting we discussed:  

• Update on Trust recovery and restoration plans 

• Update in relation to Covid-19 pandemic / current trust position on compliance / key risks 

• Update in relation to specific incidents  

• Update on any governance process or senior leadership team changes 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Quality & Safety Committee is asked to note the current position against the action plan 

following the CQC inspection in March 2021. 

 

6. REFERENCES 
 
CQC Inspection Report – Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust – Southport and 
Formby District General Hospital – Medical Care (including Older People’s Care). Published 
13/05/2021 
 
https://api.cqc.org.uk/public/v1/reports/e9ed1194-4dbc-4aa3-ab85-
1c640e1b6d9e?20210513010517  

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

https://api.cqc.org.uk/public/v1/reports/e9ed1194-4dbc-4aa3-ab85-1c640e1b6d9e?20210513010517
https://api.cqc.org.uk/public/v1/reports/e9ed1194-4dbc-4aa3-ab85-1c640e1b6d9e?20210513010517


 
 
 
 

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 19 October 2021

Subject: Adult Safeguarding

Report of: Executive Director 
of Adult Social Care 
and Health

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To report on the work of the Safeguarding Adults Board and invite comment from 
Members of the Committee.

Recommendation(s):

(1) That the report be noted.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To keep the Committee informed of developments regarding the safeguarding of adults. 
Safeguarding falls under the Terms of Reference of the Committee, as referred to in 
Chapter 6 of the Council’s Constitution.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None. Failing to report on adult safeguarding would not be fulfilling the Terms of 
Reference for the Committee.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

The Safeguarding Adults Board has a revenue budget with core funding of £0.040M and 
anticipated partner contributions from CCG and Merseyside Police of £0.030M.

(B) Capital Costs

None

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
The work of the Adult Safeguarding Board will be undertaken within existing resources. 

Legal Implications:
Section 44 of the Care Act 2014 refers to Safeguarding Adult Reviews.

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications.
Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact No
Have a neutral impact Yes
Have a negative impact No
The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

Yes

There are no direct climate emergency implications arising from this report. In the event 
of any climate emergency implications arising in the future as a result of safeguarding of 
Adults, these will be contained in reports when they are presented to Members at the 
appropriate time.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:
Reference to the approval and monitoring of recommendations will contribute towards 
protecting vulnerable members of Sefton’s communities

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:
Reference to the approval and monitoring of recommendations will contribute towards 
protecting vulnerable members of Sefton’s communities

Commission, broker and provide core services:
Reference to the approval and monitoring of recommendations will contribute towards 
protecting vulnerable members of Sefton’s communities

Place – leadership and influencer:
None directly applicable to this report. 

Drivers of change and reform:
None directly applicable to this report. 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:
None directly applicable to this report. 

Greater income for social investment: 
None directly applicable to this report. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



Cleaner Greener
None directly applicable to this report. 

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health has been consulted in the 
preparation of the report.

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD.6566/21) 
and the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD.4767/21) have been consulted and any 
comments have been incorporated into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

Partner organisations associated with adult safeguarding include Liverpool, Knowsley 
and Wirral Local Authorities.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Joan Coupe
Telephone Number: 0151 934 3748
Email Address: joan.coupe@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 The Care Act statutory guidance defines adult safeguarding as: protecting and 
adults right to live in safety, free from abuse and neglect and as a result of those 
needs is unable to protect himself of herself against the risk or abuse or risk of it.

1.2 The Care Act 2014 clearly states the 6 principles of safeguarding:

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 Empowerment – people being supported and encouraged to make their own 
decisions

 Prevention- act before it occurs
 Proportionality – least intrusive response 
 Protection- support and represent those in greatest need
 Partnership -local solutions through services in the community and in awareness 
 Accountability- accountability and transparency in practice

2. Strategic Developments 

2.1 Since 2016 Sefton Council have delivered their Care Act 2014 statutory 
responsibilities to operate a Safeguarding Adults Board by partnership 
arrangements with other Local Authorities across the LCR which includes 
Liverpool, Knowsley and Wirral under the creation of a Merseyside Safeguarding 
Adults Board. This partnership ceased in part on 30th June 2021 and Sefton has a 
newly established Safeguarding Adults Board.

2.2 Sefton Adult Social Care remain members of the Merseyside Safeguarding Adults 
Review Group, as do all previous local authority and statutory organisations on 
the LCR footprint, providing stability and standardisation in assessment of 
submissions and agreement in approval of s44 of the Care Act 2014 Safeguarding 
Adult Reviews. A Safeguarding Adults Review is a multi-agency review process 
which seeks to determine what agencies could have done differently to prevent 
harm or death occurs as a result of neglect or abuse.

2.3 Sefton will also be an active member of the soon to be created Liverpool City 
Region Learning Group which will identify learning and cascade it across the 
larger regional footprint.

2.4 Sefton have established their local Safeguarding Adults Board and Sub Groups 
and work plans for Board and Sub Groups developed building on local priorities. 

2.5 The Board is actively seeking an Independent Chair to provide the appropriate 
level of scrutiny to its performance and are hopeful that they will make an 
appointment shortly.

2.6 Partner organisations have shown enthusiasm at re-kindling the links of working 
together at Board level, to have the assurance that adults with care and support 
needs across Sefton receive a quality service.  Developments have been made 
around strengthening links into securing the voice of the service user, with 
conversations underway with Healthwatch as to how best this can be achieved.  

3. Operational Safeguarding

3.1 Social workers have the responsibility for conducting Section 42 Enquiries when a 
concern has been raised.

3.2 A training needs analysis, focused on adult safeguarding, has enabled training 
needs of all staff to be clearly identified and a training programme is currently 
being implemented to meet requirements and ensure social workers are 

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



competent to carry out safeguarding enquiries. Alongside, in recognition of various 
learning styles, we have identified on-the-job opportunities to enable staff to 
develop skills in the workplace.  We recognise the importance of embedding 
quality audit into performance triangulating information gathered into collaborative 
planning of services to meet evolving needs of the communities. 

3.3 A focussed Audit Schedule will deliver strong governance and direction to the 
evolving requirements from the Safeguarding Hub to underpin the strengthening 
of skills and service delivery across all safeguarding interventions.

4. Performance 

4.1 During the pandemic Sefton witnessed a decline in the number of concerns raised 
into the Department.  Safeguarding people throughout the pandemic has 
remained a high priority and as we the world adapts to living with Covid 19 and 
care homes re-open their doors to visitors we see a steady increase in the number 
of concerns raised back to pre-pandemic numbers. Over this period Adult Social 
Care has:

 Embedded a process of managing whole service or organisational concerns.  This 
has engendered close working relationships with the Care Quality Commission 
who frequently raise concerns to the Council in order that the proven process can 
enable satisfactory outcomes achieved in a timely manner. 

 Engaged the services of specialist teams, both within the Council with the 
Occupational Therapy Team and Drugs and Alcohol Social Workers playing an 
active role within enquiries and health colleagues with the Medication 
Management Team promptly assisting to resolve concerns raised.

 Adult Social Care have Quality Monitoring Officers who work, on a daily basis with 
safeguarding both reacting to the concerns raised and also undertaking 
preventative works with providers to reduce the risk to adults with care and 
support needs.

4.2 Significant developments have been achieved in partnership working with 
colleagues working in both Communities and Adult Social Care, particularly in the 
area of domestic abuse.  Safeguarding information from Adult Social Care will 
actively contribute to Domestic Homicide Reports and information collated by 
domestic abuse colleagues contributes to the Safeguarding Adults Review 
process.

5. Summary 

5.1 It is proposed that the Safeguarding Board Annual Report will come to Overview 
and Scrutiny for noting and comment alongside the local Sefton Safeguarding 
Strategy and performance reporting. ASC propose that performance is reported 
on a six-monthly basis but will take the view of the Committee to establish the 
diary dates.

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Scrutiny Briefing Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(Adult Social Care and Health)

Date of Meeting: 19 October 2021

Subject: Report of Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer

Organisation: NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG

Contact Officer: Lyn Cooke
Tel: 0151 317 8456
Email: lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk

Purpose/Summary

To provide Members of the Committee with an update about the work of NHS South 
Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG.

Recommendation(s)

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health) are 
requested to receive this report.

Page 27

Agenda Item 6

mailto:lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk


2

Update for Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care) 
October 2021

If you would like more information about any of the items contained in this update, if you have 
any questions about local health services, or any particular issues you would like to raise, 
please call 0151 317 8456.   

Booster programme for COVID-19 jabs begins

The roll out of COVID-19 vaccination booster doses has begun in Sefton, with those eligible 
being offered a jab six months (26 weeks) after their second vaccination. When it is their turn, 
people will be invited for a jab via the national booking service, or in some cases via their GP 
practice. The NHS is also advising anyone who hasn’t yet taken up the opportunity of a first or 
second COVID-19 vaccination that they can still come forward to get protected. The CCGs 
continue to work with council and other local partners to encourage uptake in areas with the 
lowest vaccination rates. Recent initiatives have included the vaccination bus visiting colleges in 
Bootle and Netherton to offer the jab to students.        

Don’t delay your annual flu vaccination 

Alongside the COVID-19 vaccination booster programme, the NHS is gearing up to deliver 
annual flu vaccinations. Flu vaccinations can be safely given at the same time as COVID-19 
booster doses. Although there may be opportunities for those who are eligible to have both 
together, people are being advised not to wait until they are ready for their booster and to get 
their flu vaccine as soon as possible. You can find out about the serious effects of flu, particularly 
for those in specific groups by visiting https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/vaccinations/flu-influenza-
vaccine/   
 
GPs ask for support as they work through their busiest period

GP practice staff are asking for people’s patience and support as they work through their busiest 
ever period. Sefton’s CCGs’ are reminding people that general practice is open as it has been 
throughout the pandemic and staff are working harder than ever to make sure patients and the 
public are kept safe so that they continue to get the care they need. Before the pandemic our GP 
practices were already very busy. Now GPs are dealing with more patients than ever before. 
From January to June 2021 practices in Sefton organised a total of 656,693 appointments for 
Sefton residents, not including COVID-19 vaccination appointments. 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6

https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/vaccinations/flu-influenza-vaccine/
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/vaccinations/flu-influenza-vaccine/


3

Additional safety measures, like wearing face coverings and limiting the number of people in 
practices at a time are still in place for the NHS. It may take longer to get through to practices 
and people may have to wait a little longer for a non-urgent appointment at this busy time but 
staff are doing all they can to get to people as soon as they can. Most practices are still using a 
telephone first system to help manage the rising number of contacts, or asking patients to use 
their online service if possible, to ensure everyone gets the most appropriate support for their 
needs. Most common conditions can be assessed and diagnosed by your GP via telephone or 
video consultation. Face-to-face appointments have been offered throughout COVID to anyone 
who needs to be seen in person. These could be with a GP or another appropriate member of 
the team, such as practice nurses, pharmacists, physiotherapists and social prescribers, 
depending on people’s individual needs. There are also pre-bookable appointments at evenings 
and weekends for those who need them. This way of working is essential to helping practices 
continue to provide services and they thank all their patients for working with them throughout the 
pandemic and for still wearing face-coverings, following social distancing rules and for their 
continued kindness and support when using their services.

The latest national GP patient survey that took place in March 2021 showed that over 80% of 
Sefton residents who took part, said their overall experience of their GP was good, and in some 
areas was above the national average. In addition, around 80% said they were satisfied with the 
appointment offered to them and over 95% said they had confidence and trust in their healthcare 
professional.

Survey asks patients for their experience 

During October, GP practices in Sefton will begin inviting their patients to take part in a survey 
about their experiences of accessing services since the start of the pandemic. The exercise will 
help practices respond to the requirements of this year’s Local Quality Contract focused on 
understanding and improving patient access. The survey will be rolled out in stages over the 
coming months on a practice by practice basis. Flexibility has been built into the survey’s design. 
This means that patients registered at a small number of practices where there have been site 
changes as a result of the pandemic, or where there are longer term changes will be asked 
additional questions. Practice level results will be discussed with patient participation groups to 
explore how access can be improved. Additionally, the overarching themes will help the CCGs to 
understand if any wider measures can be put in place to support practices and their patients. 

Sefton mental health review

The mental health review re-convened in September with excellent representation from across 
the borough. Discussions focused on how the findings from phase one can be translated into 
delivery, whilst also incorporating the recommendations from the Mental Health Issues Working 
Group report. A Community Excellence Task & Finish Group has been established and is being 
led by primary care networks, emphasising their key role in transforming community mental 
health services. A number of different funding streams were identified in support of the model, 
with a need to coordinate across partners to ensure that such funding is invested in accordance 
with need and complements existing services.

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



4

Sefton residents to be part of ground breaking cancer trial 

Cheshire and Merseyside has been confirmed as the first pilot site in Europe to test the ground-
breaking Galleri blood test as part of the national NHS England-GRAIL Screening Study 
Partnership. This research aims to help deliver the NHS Long Term Plan goal of increasing the 
proportion of cancers detected early and dramatically reducing deaths from cancer in the future. 
If this trial of Galleri is successful, then it could become routinely available. Galleri is a simple 
blood test that can identify over 50 different types of cancer such as head & neck, ovarian, 
pancreatic, oesophageal and some blood cancers. The trial will investigate the clinical use of the 
Galleri blood test in an asymptomatic population aged 50-77 with no current or recent cancer 
diagnosis or treatment. Cheshire & Merseyside Cancer Alliance is aiming to recruit around 
20,000 participants from across the region over the coming months. This will contribute to the 
overall goal of 140,000 participants across eight Alliance sites by March 2022. Participants will 
be identified and written to by NHS DigiTrials based on postcode and their eligibility for the trial, 
which will include Sefton residents. Interested participants will book an appointment to attend a 
local mobile health unit to consent, give blood and fill in necessary forms. Up to two further blood 
samples will be taken at 12 and 24 months.

Blood tube disruption

In August 2021, NHS England and Improvement (NHSEI) issued urgent guidance requiring all 
primary care and community blood testing to be halted until 17 September 2021, except for 
clinically urgent testing. Acute trusts, community hospitals and mental health trusts were also 
asked to reduce their demand by a minimum of 25% for a three week period up to 17 September 
2021. Since this time additional blood tubes have been secured nationally and capacity has been 
slowly recovering through September. Updated measures have been put in place and the CCGs 
are working with our local laboratory partners and community providers to ensure recovery plans 
are measured to take account of local stocks. Capacity across services in Sefton is expected to 
be back to normal by 18 October. 

Improving eye care services

Sefton’s CCGs are working with local providers to widen and improve eye care services, bringing 
them in line with national requirements. The NHS Long Term Plan sets out the ambition to 
provide digitally supported care, more joined-up services and personalised healthcare, which 
could reduce traditional face to face outpatient appointments by a third over the next five years 
across England. Ophthalmology has significant opportunities to deliver these ambitions as many 
conditions can be managed remotely and the primary care optometric workforce have the ability 
to provide many traditionally hospital based services in the community. As well as providing 
patients with more appropriate care that is provided closer to home whenever appropriate, this 
approach will also help address national workforce pressures on ophthalmology to make them 
more sustainable. A new Ophthalmology Improvement Group has been established in Sefton 
and West Lancashire to better plan and provide services and strengthen working relationships 
between various partners and providers. To complement this work and to meet national 
requirements, Sefton’s CCGs are seeking expressions of interest for a prime provider/contractor 
to manage a range of Optometry First – Community Eye Care Services that would be provided 
by primary care optical practices. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



5

It is hoped these following services would be in place by 1 April 2022:

 COVID 19 Urgent Eye Care Service (CUES) 
 Integrated Cataract Service (pre and post-operative)
 Glaucoma enhanced referral and monitoring service

‘Big Chat’ annual reviews 

Around 35 people attended each of the CCGs virtual, interactive ‘Big Chat’ style annual general 
meetings in September. The events included a look back at the performance of each CCG as 
well as giving an overview of their plans for the future. Attendees heard presentations from the 
CCGs chief officer and chief finance officer. In addition, council colleagues gave an overview of 
our developing Sefton partnership, building on our work to better integrate care to improve 
health, wellbeing and outcomes for our residents. Our lead director for primary care gave an 
overview of how general practice has been working over the past year and this was illustrated by 
each CCG chair, who gave an insight into a typical day in practice. Breakout sessions gave 
attendees the chance to share their experiences of general practice and ask questions. Polling 
throughout the event gained positive feedback on all sessions. 

The Big Chats were recorded and are available to view on the CCGs websites. 

https://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/our-big-chat-events/big-chat-and-agm-2021/

https://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/our-big-chat-events/big-chat-and-agm-
2021/

 

Governing Body meetings  

The final Governing Body meetings of 2021 take place in November. Meetings are held virtually, 
recorded and published on our CCG websites to view afterwards contemporaneously. Although 
members of the public are not able to attend, questions can be submitted in advance and will 
addressed by the governing bodies at the start of the formal session. As usual, any questions 
and responses are published after the meetings in the note pack. 

The meetings take place as follows:

 NHS Southport and Formby CCG - Wednesday 3 November

 NHS South Sefton CCG - Thursday 4 November

Any questions should be submitted by midday on the day of the meetings using the following 
emails southportandformby.ccg@nhs.net or southsefton.ccg@nhs.net You can find out more 
information about governing bodies and view meeting papers from each CCG website using the 
links at the end of this briefing.

Visit the CCGs’ websites for more about their work www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk or 
www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk, follow them on Twitter @NHSSSCCG or 
@NHSSFCCG or see a range of short films on You Tube for NHSSSCCG or NHS SFCCG 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6

https://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/our-big-chat-events/big-chat-and-agm-2021/
https://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/our-big-chat-events/big-chat-and-agm-2021/
https://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/our-big-chat-events/big-chat-and-agm-2021/
mailto:southportandformby.ccg@nhs.net
mailto:southsefton.ccg@nhs.net
http://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/
https://twitter.com/NHSSSCCG
https://twitter.com/nhssfccg
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCVF6RjsbZXnXFmoHqMzSJnQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC3zskxhEM5dWeJtypBBmTOA


This page is intentionally left blank



Main Provider Performance

July 2021

The following slides present performance against key strategic, NHS constitution, quality 

and safety indicators for the main providers the two CCGs commission from.   

Time periods vary for the indicators presented, and are indicated in the tables. 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7



NHS Southport & Formby CCG

Key Performance Area
Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (Southport & 

Ormskirk, cumultive YTD) 
Jul-21 77.2% 92%

Cancer 2 Week Waits (Southport & 

Ormskirk, cumulative YTD)
Jul-21 81.2% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (Southport & 

Ormskirk Cumulative YTD)
Jul-21 77.8% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (Southport & Ormskirk, 

cumulative YTD)
Jul-21 97.6% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (Southport & 

Ormskirk, in month snaphot position)
Jul-21 83.8% 92%

C.Difficile (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative 

YTD)
Jul-21 22

9 YTD

16 (year end)   

MRSA (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative 

YTD)
Jul-21 0 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit, Southport & Ormskirk, monthly 

snapshot position)

Jul-21 69.2% 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(Southport & Ormskirk, monthly snapshot 

position)

Jul-21 34.9% 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute 

response time (CCG LEVEL)
Jul-21 00:10:28 <=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 1            

Jun-21
100.0% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG 

LEVEL)
Jul-21 0.50%

 1.59% per month Qtr 1-3 

1.83% per month Qtr 4   

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG 

LEVEL)
Jul-21 55.9% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 1            

Jun-21
88.0% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 1            

Jun-21
100.0% 90%

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 7



Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust
Friends & Family

Measure
Time 

Period

Southport & 

Ormskirk
England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Jun-21 23.9% 19.6%

Inpatient Recommended Jun-21 90.0% 95.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Jun-21 6.0% 3.0%

A&E – response Jun-21 26.1% 10.8%

A&E Recommended Jun-21 89.8% 82.0%

A&E Not Recommended Jun-21 6.3% 11.0%

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 7



NHS Southport & Formby CCG
7 Day GP Extended Access

877 34 351 275 220 149 186 30

75.54% 3.9% 30.2% 23.7% 18.9% 12.8% 16.0% 2.6%

881 26 341 203 87 123 53 0

82.80% 3.0% 32.0% 19.1% 8.2% 11.6% 5.0% 0.0%

770 46 363 176 73 88 70 0

83.97% 6.0% 39.6% 19.2% 8.0% 9.6% 7.6% 0.0%

672 25 274 190 64 41 62 0

80.58% 3.7% 32.9% 22.8% 7.7% 4.9% 7.4% 0.0%

625 18 274 209 37 30 69 0

82.78% 2.9% 36.3% 27.7% 4.9% 4.0% 9.1% 0.0%

Jun-21 917 78.95% Jun-21

May-21 1064 80.36% May-21

PhysioGP
Advanced Nurse 

Practitioner

Practice 

Nurse

Health Care 

Assistant
Month

Appointments 

Available

MH 

Pactitioner
Utilisation

Southport 

& Formby
Booked DNA

Breakdown of 

Appointments

Aug-21 755 80.40% Aug-21

Jul-21 834 77.58% Jul-21

Apr-21 1161 72.61% Apr-21

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 7



NHS South Sefton CCG

Key Performance Area
Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (LUHFT) Jul-21 65.9% 93%

Cancer 2 Week Waits (LUHFT) Jul-21 93.9% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (LUHFT) Jul-21 60.0% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (LUHFT) Jul-21 97.3% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (LUHFT) Jul-21 63.7% 92%

C.Difficile (LUHFT) Jul-21 45
14 YTD

56 (year end)

MRSA (LUHFT) Jul-21 1 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit) (LUHFT)
Jul-21 - 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(LUHFT)
Jul-21 72.7% 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute 

response time (CCG LEVEL)
Jul-21 00:09:14 <=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 1            

Jun-21
100.0% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG 

LEVEL)
Jul-21 0.90%

1.59% per month Qtr 1-3

1.83% per month Qtr 4

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG 

LEVEL)
Jul-21 42.3% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 1            

Jun-21
92.0% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 1            

Jun-21
100.0% 90%

*No Stroke Data Reported

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 7



Liverpool University Hospital site
Friends and Family

Measure
Time 

Period
LUHFT England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Jun-21 22.2% 19.6%

Inpatient Recommended Jun-21 91.5% 95.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Jun-21 4.7% 3.0%

A&E – response Jun-21 20.7% 10.8%

A&E Recommended Jun-21 79.7% 82.0%

A&E Not Recommended Jun-21 13.3% 11.0%

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 7



NHS South Sefton CCG
7 Day GP Extended Access

1160 86 265 372 235 262

77.3% 7.4% 22.84% 32.07% 20.26% 22.59%

1006 112 250 377 215 268

68.1% 11.1% 24.85% 37.48% 21.37% 26.64%

1145 143 125 524 154 288

80.5% 12.5% 10.92% 45.76% 13.45% 25.15%

958 101 126 525 183 247

83.2% 10.5% 13.15% 54.80% 19.10% 25.78%

967 95 303 273 244 141

85.1% 9.8% 31.33% 28.23% 25.23% 14.58%

Jul-21 1151 74.46% Jul-21

Aug-21 1136 76.76% Aug-21

Apr-21 1500 71.60% Apr-21

Advanced Nurse 

Practitioner

Practice 

Nurse
PhysioMonth GP

South 

Sefton

Appointments 

Available
DNA UtilisationBooked

Jun-21 1422 70.46% Jun-21

May-21 1477 60.53% May-21

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 19 October 2021

Subject: Cabinet Member Reports – September – October 2021

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care
Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To submit the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - 
Health and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

Recommendation:

That the Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - Health 
and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be noted.

Reasons for the Recommendation:

In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to 
be submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

No alternative options have been considered because the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

Any financial implications associated with the Cabinet Member reports which are 
referred to in this update are contained within the respective reports.

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



2

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None

Legal Implications: None

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 
Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact No
Have a neutral impact Yes
Have a negative impact No
The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

Yes

There are no direct climate emergency implications arising from this report. Any 
climate emergency implications arising from the consideration of reports referred 
to in the Work Programme will be contained in such reports when they are 
presented to Members at the appropriate time.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. The Cabinet 
Member updates provides information on activity within Councillor Cummins’ and 
Councillor Moncur’s portfolios during the previous three-month period. Any 
reports relevant to their portfolios considered by the Cabinet, Cabinet Member or 
Committees during this period would contain information as to how such reports 
contributed to the Council’s Core Purpose.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As above

Commission, broker and provide core services: As above

Place – leadership and influencer: As above

Drivers of change and reform: As above

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: As above

Greater income for social investment: As above

Cleaner Greener: As above

Page 42

Agenda Item 8



3

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Cabinet Member Update Reports are not subject to FD/LD consultation.  Any 
specific financial and legal implications associated with any subsequent reports 
arising from the attached Cabinet Member update reports will be included in those 
reports as appropriate

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable 

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254
Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:

Appendix A - Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care - update report
Appendix B - Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing – update report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member 
Reports to be submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

1.2 Attached to this report, for information, are the most recent Cabinet Member 
reports for the Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing portfolios.

Page 43

Agenda Item 8

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

-1-

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE REPORT
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health)

19th October 2021

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Paul Cummins Adult Social Care August/September 2021

1. Care Homes - Vaccination 

The vaccination rate is positive for Sefton care homes. There is a 96.6% rate for residents, 
and 92.8% for staff overall, this is the second highest rate in the Liverpool City Region. There 
will be a rollout of the booster process, with a view to this being completed by the 
1st November 2021.

Our contracts team are currently working with care homes who have non-vaccinated staff to 
ensure service continuity post 11th November 2021 when the statutory requirement takes 
effect for double vaccinations to be in place. Currently, we are working with 19 care homes 
that may be impacted when the statutory requirements come into force. This means that staff 
who are not vaccinated will not be able to work in care homes. We continue to discuss these 
issues on our strategic calls with Providers, and are also continuing to hold vaccination Q&A 
sessions for staff which are facilitated by a local GP.

Work continues to provide full vaccinations to learning disability services. Domiciliary care 
workers vaccination rate is now at 78.8% overall. 

There are no issues in relation to sustainable PPE supply, and have confirmation that PPE 
supplies will be available to care homes at no cost until March 2022 through the Government 
portal. 

2.  Adult Social Care Budget 

The reported position to Cabinet for Adult Social Care in June was a balanced position, 
however, early indications show further areas where positive variances against budget are 
forecast. Budgets relating to cost of packages are more difficult to forecast owing to the 
ongoing impact of Covid on services and income.  Adult Social Care continues to transform 
areas, such as strategic commissioning, and is developing innovative approaches to offset 
demand for services. This transformation introduced in 2020/21 continues to produce results 
in the current financial year.

External grants - the 2020/21 year saw financial support from the Government (DHSC) in 
Infection Control, Rapid Test funding and Workforce Capacity grants. These grants totalled 
over £11m with a requirement to passport to providers. 

Infection Control grants and testing support to care providers have continued for April - 
September with allocations of circa £4.5M. 

3. Sefton’s Adults Safeguarding Board

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A

-2-

Partner organisations have shown enthusiasm at re-kindling the links of working together at 
Board level, to have the assurance that adults with care and support needs across Sefton 
receive a quality service.  Developments have been made around strengthening links into 
securing the voice of the service user, with conversations underway with Healthwatch as to 
how best this can be achieved. Subgroups have now been established that sit under the 
Board, although their inaugural meetings are still to take place.

Sefton’s Board website is under development, along with exploration of how we can best use 
other social media platforms of communications, to encourage engagement in safeguarding 
activities both internally, and with our partners’ organisations.  

4. Mental Health Services 

4.1 Sefton Mental Health Review

The second phase of the Sefton Mental Health Review has commenced, and a Community 
Transformation Fund Task and Finish Group has been established to:

 ensure the model of care is co-designed with partners to achieve its intended 
outcomes of improving patient experience, having holistic care and enables patients 
to participate in achieving personalised care;

 assist Partners to agree with the approach - both in terms of the model itself, and the 
implementation plan;

 ensure there is sufficient connectivity with the wider strategic mental health review and 
other relevant programmes of work across Sefton;

 create appropriate communication and engagement across the system;

 develop a new, inclusive community-based offer based on redesigning mental health 
services around Primary Care Networks that integrates primary and secondary care, 
voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) and local authority services.

4.2 Brain in Hand App

NHS Digital have approved a bid for £55k submitted by Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Groups and the Council’s Commissioning Team to pilot the Brain in Hand mobile phone 
application, which is a mobile application that provides self-help, on line support including a 
phone service that aims to support people with mental health conditions to live 
independently.  The application will be targeted at people aged 16-25 and the licences will 
be co-ordinated by the Council.

5. Performance 

Sefton’s Safeguarding performance report has highlighted the following: -

Sefton has a high rate of Safeguarding Concerns and when broken down by abuse type 
Sefton’s profile reflects that of other North West authorities. The most common form of abuse 
is neglect and acts of omission, this is followed by physical and psychological abuse. The 

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A

-3-

Safeguarding Board will be focussing on plans to address this pattern and work with both 
providers and Sefton residents to raise the profile of prevention from abuse.

Sefton’s performance in Making Safeguarding Personal compares well compared to other 
North West authorities. 

6. Integration and National Policy Update 

As previously reported, work continues to ensure readiness for Sefton’s Integrated Care 
Partnership to take effect from 1st April 2022. Detailed guidance recently released on ‘Thriving 
Places’ detailing local requirements, and further guidance on the interaction with the Cheshire 
and Merseyside Integrated Care System is currently being worked through with Sefton 
receiving a positive assessment of maturity in respect of this. A detailed report is due to 
Cabinet on the 4th November 2021 which will provide more information on form and function.

6.1 Integrated Care Teams (ICTs) Updates

An ICT Delivery Group has been established to explore the wider aspects of ICT working and 
the next steps to take this forward. This group will consider referral pathways in place 
between ICTs and others, and work is already underway with ICT leads in relation to the 
recently launched portal for referrals into Sefton Adult Social Care.

Both North and South area teams continue to work on an ICT footprint, attending weekly 
multi-disciplinary team (MDT) meetings held to discuss individual need and how need can be 
best met with a person-centred approach. 

The ICT Delivery Group is also exploring how the work undertaken across the ICTs, as well 
as within the locality MDT’s held, can be enhanced further to meet needs of the local 
communities, and explore potential gaps in the community offer that may need to be taken 
forward. Work is also underway to ensure a life course approach for those with complex lives 
can be considered from the onset.

7. Complaints Update  

We have received the Ombudsman annual report and we are now considering the findings 
contained within this and how this will impact our practice.  We are still receiving a high 
number of compliments within Adult Social Care, although we are receiving an increase in 
the number of complaints received also, and full details of this will be provided in the quarter 
two report.

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care) – 19 October 2021

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Ian Moncur Health and Wellbeing September 21

COVID-19 Update
The verbal update provided to me in September on Coronavirus in Sefton noted that:

 The weekly incidence of new cases of Coronavirus rose from around 300/100 
000 in the first half of August to just over 400/100 000 in early September, with 
a faster rate of increase in recent days

 The incidence rate in the age 60 and over age group continued at around 
180/100 000 and the growth in cases had been faster than in the under 60 age 
group, which could be associated with mixing and testing linked to summer 
holidays and socialising and return to school testing

 The sustained period of higher incidence in this age group and overall, is 
reflected in higher but stable mortality associated with Coronavirus compared 
to earlier in the summer (5-6 deaths per week)

 With all-age incidence approximately one third the level of January 2021, 
demand on hospitals from new admissions and inpatient care was stable at 
around one quarter of the January level (when the less transmissible Alpha 
variant was dominant)

 100% of Sefton cases, which have been genomically sequenced are the more 
transmissible Delta variant, and this is typical of other areas

 As expected, lateral flow testing increased dramatically at the end of August 
due to secondary school children completing two tests in the first week back at 
school, with tests doubling from 2000 to 4000 per day. The rise in PCR was 
smaller to around 1600 per day.

 In early September, the highest incidence was in 10-19 year-olds (600-700/100 
000), with increases also seen in younger children and working age adults, 
including individuals in their 50s and 60s

 The burden of infection remained high across Sefton with 8% of community 
PCR tests returning a positive result, and weekly incidence above 200/100 000 
in most wards, with several areas in South Sefton and some in the Southport 
area in the 400-500/100 000 bracket

 At the start of September 18.9% of eligible individuals aged 16 or older had 
received no doses of vaccine, 81.2% had one dose and 74.5% were fully 
vaccinated (ranging 58-83% across Sefton wards). Uptake of vaccine offer is 
lowest in the youngest age groups, e.g. full vaccination in 18-24s was 42.6%

Relevant policy developments included,

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B

 Exemption from isolation from 16th August for under 18s and over 18s who are 
double vaccinated

 Publication in mid-August of the new Contingency Framework for Schools and 
Education settings, setting out new plans for managing outbreaks 

 Target to offer all 16-17-year olds one dose of vaccine by 23rd August and all 
adults aged 18+ two doses by mid-September

 Anticipated policy announcements were: 
o Details of the vaccine booster programme, a third primary dose for 

specific clinically extremely vulnerable, the vaccine offer for healthy 12-
15 year-olds, and the Government’s Autumn Coronavirus plan

Obesity
I received a progress report which provided an update of the objectives, successes 
and challenges for tackling obesity and supporting healthy weight over the short, 
medium and long term. 

The report made clear that a long-term approach needs to be adopted to tackle this 
serious and significant issue and as the National Food Plan 2021 highlights, the 
complexities of obesity are far ranging. Sefton are committed to halting the rising trend 
in obesity by committing to a whole system approach to change. 

The report considered the context in the way in which providers and commissioners 
across the health economy work together and how that is changing.

Whole System Approach 
 Creates a shift away from interventionist approach which has limited impact at 

the margins
 Obesity is a complex issue - provides an ongoing, dynamic and flexible way of 

working
 Requires   local stakeholders, including communities, to come together, share 

an understanding of the reality of the challenge, consider how the local system 
is operating and where there are the greatest opportunities for change 

 Stakeholders collectively agree actions and decide as a network how to work 
together in an integrated way to bring about sustainable, long-term systems 
change

Reflecting on work already done and where we need to go within Sefton 
 Interventions in place in Sefton for 20 years – limited success therefore 

switching to whole system approach 
 Growing inequalities – aim to tackle this in a more holistic approach 
 Healthy Weight Declaration – in place since 2018, refresh underway 
 Local research 19/20 – indicated inequality and poverty are central 
 New research 2021 – will examine impact of pandemic on obesity
 Multiagency task group in place 
 Commitment to working across partnerships with senior leaders on board 

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B
 Short to medium term, 12-24-month action plan aligned to the Sefton obesity 

dashboard 

Challenges and Barriers 
Obesity is one of the leading causes of health inequalities in the UK, as a system we 
must ensure our concerted actions on this agenda are felt most intensely by our most 
vulnerable members of society who are most susceptible to becoming overweight or 
obese due to factors outside their control. 

There is no one single solution, the report makes clear that we can only tackle obesity 
if it becomes everybody’s business and is prioritised and embedded in everything we 
do. Senior leadership, organisational ownership and accountability is essential if 
obesity is to make the cultural shift from being solely a ‘health’ issue and being 
everybody’s issue. 

The report also references the Healthy Weight Declaration (HWD) which has been 
endorsed by the Council as a tool to support change. Although Cabinet Member 
commitment is in place, there has been limited success and variable engagement 
across the Council, and indeed, wider organisations in terms of their ownership and 
commitment to change. This is despite the HWDs attempts to provide a practical ‘how 
to’ process, which enables local authorities to start creating their own local whole 
systems approaches to tackling obesity and promoting a healthy weight. The report 
emphasises that a total cultural shift needs to be implemented if we are to create any 
impact in tackling obesity.

It is clear, if we are serious about change that we will need to drive a new way of 
working.  Complex issues, like obesity, require sustained and systemic action and buy-
in from systems leaders. This is essential to support implementation and enable local 
authorities to work differently and test new approaches. 

Seasonal Influenza
Recent consultation with Service Managers on where staff are located and how many 
are attending Council buildings or working from home, indicated that the majority of 
staff are still working from home. Therefore, the Public Health team intend to procure 
a community-based voucher scheme, with some flu clinics being offered at key Council 
sites. The Public Health team are working with the Local Pharmacy Committee to seek 
expressions of interest from community pharmacies in Sefton to provide this offer. 
Further updates will be provided.

Children’s Living Well Sefton
The emerging impacts of COVID-19 on children and young people, require existing 
Public Health commissioned areas to be responsive and adaptable to needs. More 
children and young people need support and increasingly that support will need be 
multifaceted and easily accessed. Creating a focused integrated wellness service 
(IWS) to support children and their families will involve linking up existing Children’s 
Public Health commissioned services and programmes, and other related activities. A 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B
hub will act as the co-ordinator of spokes, offering specialist advice and navigation, 
training, relationship management with wider partners and universal assessment 
practice. 

Ending the COVID-19 pandemic, is partly reliant on COVID-19 vaccine uptake and 
routine testing practice across the population. We know that social inequities are 
associated with vulnerability to COVID-19 and we know that vaccine hesitancy 
amongst adults in England is higher in areas of greatest deprivation (8%) compare to 
most affluent (2%), ONS 2021. Uptake amongst young people has improved recently, 
however, continued effort is required to further increase uptake amongst young people 
and families, particularly, in areas of greatest deprivation. 

The aim is to move away from separate services and siloed working to create a system 
that is responsive to need and easy to navigate by children, young people and families. 
It is acknowledged that COVID-19 has impacted significantly on need and complexity, 
therefore it is necessary to develop an offer that is holistic and includes outreach 
working and health promotion campaigns. 

Discussions have taken place with key stakeholders to establish how the hub model 
will develop and operate to co-ordinate and facilitate an integrated health improvement 
offer. It is proposed that the hub be fully developed over a 2-year period to build the 
foundations and structure required for a sustained model, whilst developing 
opportunities and forging partner relationships and pathways.

Leisure Update
Despite the government announcement on 5 July 2021 that we would move to step 4 
of the roadmap and all restrictions would be removed, a decision was taken to remain 
at step 3 with restrictions around capacity. This was greeted with a mixed response 
with some members welcoming the move to protect members and staff, however the 
overall feeling was one of complaint and frustration. However, the health and well-
being of our customers and staff was our number 1 priority at that time.

Work started in August on the new 3G pitch at Litherland which also includes new LED 
lighting for the pitch and the running track.

The Leisure development offer ramped up as lockdown restrictions eased with more 
of a physical offer rather than the virtual offer that has been prevalent for the previous 
18 months. Activities such as Park Nights, Summer Be Active and Football Soccer 
Camps were all delivered during the summer holidays, with Covid restrictions around 
locations and numbers of attendees in place.  

Leisure: Children & Young People 121 Programme
The report provided an update on the 121 programme, delivered by Active Sefton, 
designed to improve the physical and mental wellbeing of children and young people. 
Commissioned by Public Health, in addition to receiving funds to work with victims of 
domestic violence, the programme predominantly works with those aged 11-19, 

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B
utilising physical activity as a tool to break down barriers and enable young people to 
engage in dialogue about issues that may be affecting them. The service receives 
referrals from Early Help, Social Services, Youth Offending and schools, as well as 
self-referrals made by family or carers and delivers bespoke sessions based around 
individual needs and interests.

During the pandemic, the team continued delivery, adapting the service in line with 
guidance. Despite lockdowns there were 147 people engaged, with 386 sessions 
delivered in 2020-21.

During quarter 1 2021/22, 90 people engaged in 121 and 400 sessions delivered, 
with strong partnership and multi-agency approaches developed. Staffing capacity 
has increased, which enabled the waiting list to reduce. Significant progress has been 
made with secondary schools to work with pupils on site, including Savio High, Meols 
Cop, and Greenbank.  Both school-based and 1:1 interventions have demonstrated 
incredible outcomes, including improved mental wellbeing, confidence, self-esteem, 
school attendance, behaviour, focus and concentration, physical and social 
development. 

As a result of COVID Recovery funding, the programme is expanding with an 
additional 3 Officers who will be based per locality to work with schools on a 1:1 or 
small group basis, including delivery of a 4-week course in secondary schools aimed 
at improving self-esteem, confidence, self-worth, behaviour, concentration and 
attention.  The monitoring and evaluation is also being improved to include 3, 6, 9 and 
12 months follow ups to ascertain if our young people are sustaining their activity.

Adult Social Care & Health - Integration and National Policy Update 
The Health and Care Bill was published on the 6th July, the Bill provides detail on how 
systems and their constituent organisations will accelerate collaborative ways of 
working in future, considering the key components of an effective integrated care 
system (and the immediate and long-term challenges presented by the Covid-19 
pandemic).  From April 2022, this will require all parts of the health and care system 
to work together as Integrated Care Systems, involving:
 Stronger partnerships in local authority areas between the NHS, local 

government and others with a more central role for primary care in providing 
joined up care;

 Provider organisations being asked to step forward in formal collaborative 
arrangements that allow them to operate at scale; and

 Developing strategic commissioning through systems with a focus on population 
health outcomes;

 The use of digital and data to drive system working, connect health and care 
providers, improve outcomes and put the citizen at the heart of their own care.

The Bill seeks to make Integrated Care Systems statutory, and details how the 
relationship of the system (Cheshire and Merseyside) and Place (Sefton) will work. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B
These proposals sit alongside other requirements aimed at removing legislative 
barriers to integration across health bodies and with social care, to help deliver better 
care and outcomes for patients through collaboration, and to join up national 
leadership more formally. Of course, as it is this government that has drawn this Bill 
up, it is flawed in so many ways, and highly unlikely to achieve better outcomes for our 
population. The Bill includes the creation of greater powers for the Secretary of State, 
allowing for greater political interference, and the potential for greater privatisation and 
cronyism within the Health Service.

The Bill will change the way in which decisions are governed, particularly in relation to 
services, and finances, as we establish more integrated ways of working. This will 
require a review of current decision-making and governance groups. The Health and 
Wellbeing Board (HWBB) has now commenced a programme of development 
delivered by the Local Government Association. 

Plans about the Integrated Care Partnership are being shared with partners and their 
staff, as well as being cascaded to Council staff over the next few weeks. Engagement 
has also begun with the Health and Social Care Forum, Every Child Matters Forum 
and Health Watch. 

A full report on key Adult Social Care is provided to the Committee in a dedicated 
report from Councillor Cummins. 

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 19 October 2021

Subject: Work Programme 2021/22, Scrutiny Review Topics and Key 
Decision Forward Plan

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care
Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To review the Committee’s Work Programme for the remainder of the Municipal Year 
2021/22; to report on progress of the Mental Health Issues Working Group; to report 
on progress of work on the Integrated Care Partnership; to identify any items for pre-
scrutiny scrutiny by the Committee from the Key Decision Forward Plan; to receive an 
update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; to report on progress made on the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee, to 
consider proposals for the reconfiguration of the hyper-acute stroke services across 
North Merseyside and West Lancashire; and to note the update by Healthwatch 
Sefton.

Recommendations:

That:

(1) the Work Programme for 2021/22, as set out in Appendix A to the report, be 
agreed, along with any additional items to be included and thereon be agreed;

(2) the progress made by the Mental Health Issues Working Group be noted;

(3) progress made on work on the Integrated Care Partnership be noted;

(4) items for pre-scrutiny from the Key Decision Forward Plan which fall under the 
remit of the Committee, as set out in Appendix B to the report, be considered 
and any agreed items be included in the work programme referred to in (1) 
above;

(5) the update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee be noted; and

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



(6) the progress made on the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee, to consider proposals 
for the reconfiguration of the hyper-acute stroke services across North Merseyside 
and West Lancashire, be noted;

(7) the recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton, as outlined in Appendix 
C to the report, be noted.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To determine the Work Programme of items to be considered during the Municipal Year 
2021/22; to identify scrutiny review topics which would demonstrate that the work of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee “adds value” to the Council; and to comply with a 
decision of the Committee to update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The pre-scrutiny process assists Cabinet Members to make effective decisions by 
examining issues before making formal decisions.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

No alternative options have been considered as the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
needs to approve its Work Programme; to potentially consider scrutiny review topics; and 
consider other activities in relation to the work of the Committee.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Any financial 
implications arising from the consideration of a key decision or relating to a 
recommendation arising from a Working Group review will be reported to Members at the 
appropriate time.

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None

Legal Implications: None

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 
Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact No
Have a neutral impact Yes
Have a negative impact No

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

Yes

There are no direct climate emergency implications arising from this report. Any 
climate emergency implications arising from the consideration of reports referred to in 
the Work Programme will be contained in such reports when they are presented to 
Members at the appropriate time.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. Reference in the 
Work Programme to the approval of, and monitoring of recommendations, will 
contribute towards protecting vulnerable members of Sefton’s communities.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: None directly applicable to this report.

Commission, broker and provide core services: None directly applicable to this report.

Place – leadership and influencer: None directly applicable to this report.

Drivers of change and reform: None directly applicable to this report.

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: None directly applicable to this report.

Greater income for social investment: None directly applicable to this report.

Cleaner Greener: None directly applicable to this report.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Work Programme and Key Decision Forward Plan Report is not subject to FD/LD 
consultation. Any specific financial and legal implications associated with any 
subsequent reports will be reported to Members as appropriate.

Relevant Heads of Service have been consulted in the preparation of the Work 
Programme for the Committee.

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:

 Appendix A - Work Programme for 2021/22;
 Appendix B - Latest Key Decision Forward Plan items relating to this Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee;
 Appendix C - Update of recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton.

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Introduction/Background

1. WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22

1.1 The Work Programme of items to be submitted to the Committee for consideration 
during the remainder of the Municipal Year 2021/22 is attached at Appendix A to 
the report. The programme has been produced in liaison with the appropriate 
Heads of Service, whose roles fall under the remit of the Committee.

1.2 Members are requested to consider whether there are any other items that they 
wish the Committee to consider, that fall within the terms of reference of the 
Committee. The Work Programme will be submitted to each meeting of the 
Committee during 2021/22 and updated, as appropriate.

1.3 The Committee is requested to comment on the Work Programme for 
2021/22, as appropriate, and note that additional items may be submitted to 
the Programme at future meetings of the Committee during this Municipal 
Year.

2. SCRUTINY REVIEW TOPIC 2020/21 – MENTAL HEALTH ISSUES WORKING 
GROUP

2.1 At the meeting held on 1 September 2020, the Committee established a working 
group to review the topic of mental health services and the prevention of issues.

2.2 The Committee:

“RESOLVED: That

(2) a working group be established to consider mental health services and the 
prevention of issues, consisting of Councillors Howard and Roscoe, and Mr. 
Roger Hutchings, Healthwatch;”

Page 58

Agenda Item 9

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


2.3 The Committee agreed the Final Report of the Working Group at its last meeting 
held on 7 September 2021.

2.4 The Final Report was submitted to the Cabinet for consideration on 7 October 
2021 and the recommendations were agreed.

2.5 The Final Report will now be submitted to the meeting of the Council scheduled 
for 18 November 2021, and the outcome will be reported back to the Committee in 
due course.

2.6 The Committee is requested to note that the Mental Health Issues Working 
Group has completed its review and to note the progress made in agreeing 
the recommendations made by the Working Group.

3. SCRUTINY REVIEW TOPICS 2021/22

3.1 It is good practise for Overview and Scrutiny Committees to appoint a Working 
Group to undertake a scrutiny review of services during the Municipal Year.

3.2 Following a suggestion made by the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and 
Health, at the last meeting of the Committee held on 7 September 2021, the 
Committee agreed that:

“rather than establish a traditional working group during 2021/22, all Members of 
the Committee be invited to participate in undertaking a piece of work on the 
Integrated Care Partnership;” (Minute No. 27 (4) refers).

3.3 At the time of drafting this report efforts are on-going to secure a date for a 
meeting on the Integrated Care Partnership.

3.4 The Committee is requested to note the progress made on work on the 
Integrated Care Partnership.

4. PRE-SCRUTINY OF ITEMS IN THE KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN

4.1 Members may request to pre-scrutinise items from the Key Decision Forward Plan 
which fall under the remit (terms of reference) of this Committee. The Forward 
Plan, which is updated each month, sets out the list of items to be submitted to the 
Cabinet for consideration during the next four-month period.

4.2 The pre-scrutiny process assists the Cabinet Members to make effective 
decisions by examining issues beforehand and making recommendations prior to 
a determination being made.

4.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board has requested that only those key 
decisions that fall under the remit of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
should be included on the agenda for consideration.

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



4.4 The latest Forward Plan, published on 30 September 2021, is attached at 
Appendix B for this purpose. For ease of identification, items listed on the 
Forward Plan for the first time appear as shaded. 

4.5 There is just one item within the current Plan that falls under the remit of the 
Committee on this occasion, namely:

 Sefton Integrated Care Partnership

4.6 Should Members require further information in relation to any item on the Key 
Decision Forward Plan, would they please contact the relevant Officer named 
against the item in the Plan, prior to the Meeting.

4.7 The Committee is invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan as set out in Appendix B to the report, which fall 
under the remit of the Committee and any agreed items be included in the 
Work Programme referred to in (1) above.

5. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

5.1 During the October/November 2019 cycle of meetings, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board and the four Overview and Scrutiny Committees considered a 
report on the guidance produced by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government relating to Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined 
Authorities following on from the Communities and Local Government Select 
Committee’s inquiry into Overview and Scrutiny. This Committee considered the 
matter at its meeting held on 15 October 2019 (Minute No. 32 refers).

5.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board and the four Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees all agreed the recommendations contained in the report, one 
of which being that updates on Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (LCRCA O&S) be included in the Work 
Programme report considered at each Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.

5.3 In accordance with the above decision, information on the LCRCA O&S is set out 
below.

5.4 Role

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee was established by the Combined 
Authority in May 2017 in accordance with the Combined Authorities Order 2017.

The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to:

 Scrutinise the decision and actions taken by the Combined Authority or the 
Metro Mayor;

 Provide a “critical friend” to policy and strategy development;
 Undertake scrutiny reviews into areas of strategic importance for the people of 

the Liverpool City Region; and

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



 Monitor the delivery of the Combined Authority’s strategic plan.

5.5 Membership

The Committee is made up of 3 elected Members from each of the constituent 
Local Authorities of the LCR Combined Authority, along with one elected Member 
from both the Liverpool City Region Liberal Democrat Group and the Liverpool 
City Region Conservative Group.

Sefton’s appointed Members are Councillors Hansen, Howard and Waterfield. 
Councillor Howard is Sefton’s Scrutiny Link.

Councillor Patrick Moloney is the representative of the Liberal Democrat Group on 
the Committee. The Conservative Group nomination is still awaited by the 
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority. 

5.6 Chair and Vice-Chair

The Chair of the LCRCAO&S cannot be a Member of the majority group. The 
Chair, Councillor Steve Radford, a Liberal Democrat Member from Liverpool City 
Council, was appointed at the first meeting of the Committee on 14 July 2021. 

5.7 Quoracy Issues

A high number of meetings of the LCRCA O&S have been inquorate. 

The quorum for meetings of the LCRCAO&S is 14, two-thirds of the total number 
of members, 20. This high threshold is not set by the Combined Authority but is 
set out in legislation. 

The Combined Authority’s Monitoring Officer will be looking to work with the 
Monitoring Officers from the other Combined Authorities to identify what problems 
they are experiencing with Scrutiny and how/if they had overcome them. 
Representations to Government would also be considered once all options locally 
to resolve the quorum issue had been exhausted. The CA Monitoring Officer 
would then be able to provide evidence to Government that the quorum level was 
obstructing the work of scrutiny within the CA. 

5.8 Meetings

Information on all meetings and membership of the LCRCAO&S can be obtained 
using the following link:

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0

Latest Meeting – 8 September 2021

The latest meeting of the LCRCAO&S was held on 8 September 2021 and was 
cancelled due to being inquorate.

The agenda for the meeting included the following items:

Page 61

Agenda Item 9

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0


 Verbal Update from Metro Mayor Steve Rotheram
 Liverpool City Region Bus Service Improvement Plan
 Work Programme 2021/22 
 Appointment of Scrutiny Members to the Audit and Governance Committee 

2021/22 

The next meeting of the LCRCAO&S will be held on 3 November 2021.

Details of all meetings can be obtained using the link referred to above.

5.9 The Committee is requested to note the update on the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

6. JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

6.1 At the Special Meeting of the Committee held on 27 July 2021, the Committee 
considered proposals for the reconfiguration of the hyper-acute stroke services 
across North Merseyside and West Lancashire and agreed:

“That the Committee considers that the proposals for the reconfiguration of the 
hyper-acute stroke services across North Merseyside constitute a substantial 
development / variation in services for Sefton residents.” (Minute No. 16 refers).

6.2 Other local authorities consulted also agreed that the reconfiguration of the hyper-
acute stroke services across North Merseyside constituted a substantial 
development / variation in services for residents. The other local authorities affected 
are Knowsley, Liverpool and West Lancashire Councils.

6.3 A Joint Health Scrutiny Committee will now be established, comprised of Members 
from the four local authorities consulted.

6.4 In accordance with the decision made by the Cabinet in relation to the Appointment 
to Outside Bodies 2021/22, on 24 June 2021, Councillors Myers and Thomas will 
be Sefton’s representatives on the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee (Minute No. 23 
refers).

6.5 At the time of drafting this report, attempts are being made to organise the first 
meeting of the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for early November 2021. Any 
developments will be reported verbally to the Committee.

6.6 The Committee is requested to note the progress made on the Joint Health 
Scrutiny Committee.

7. HEALTHWATCH SEFTON

7.1 An update of recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton is attached to this 
report at Appendix C, for information.

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



7.2 The Committee is requested to note recent activities undertaken by 
Healthwatch Sefton.

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

1
11/10/21

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22

Date of Meeting

Item

22 JUNE 21
Bootle

07 SEPTEMBER 21 19 OCTOBER 21 04 JANUARY 22 22 FEBRUARY 22

Regular Reports:
Cabinet Member Update Report
(Julie Leahair/Julie Eliot/Debbie Campbell)

X X X X X

Work Programme Update
(Debbie Campbell)

X X X X X

CCGs’ Update Report
(CCGs)

X X X X X

Health Provider Performance Dashboard
(CCGs)

X X X X X

Service Operational Reports:
Sefton Integrated Care Home Strategy
(Neil Watson / Eleanor Moulton)

X

Sefton Integrated Care Partnership 
Development
(Eleanor Moulton)

X

Mental Health Issues Working Group Final 
Report
(Debbie Campbell)

X

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 9



APPENDIX A

2
11/10/21

Item 22 JUNE 21
Bootle

07 SEPTEMBER 21 19 OCTOBER 21 04 JANUARY 22 22 FEBRUARY 22

Service Operational Reports 
(Continued):
Safeguarding of Adults
(Deborah Butcher)

X

Early Intervention and Prevention
(Deborah Butcher)

X

CCGs’ Updates
Access to General Practice and NHS 111 
Services During the COVID-19 Pandemic

X

Phase 2 Clinical Integration of Haemato-
Oncology Services in North Merseyside

X

NHS Updates:
Current Challenges Faced by Dentistry in 
Light of the Covid 19 Pandemic
(NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSEI))

X X

Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust – 
Representatives to attend

X

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 9



APPENDIX B

1

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2021 - 28 FEBRUARY 2022

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key decisions which the Cabinet, individual Cabinet 
Members or Officers expect to take during the next four month period.  The Plan is rolled forward 
every month and is available to the public at least 28 days before the beginning of each month.

A Key Decision is defined in the Council's Constitution as:

1. any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 
approved by the Council and which requires a gross budget expenditure, saving or virement 
of more than £100,000 or more than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the 
greater;

2. any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact on a significant 
number of people living or working in two or more Wards

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by 
contacting the relevant officer listed against each Key Decision, within the time period indicated.

Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council's Constitution, a Key 
Decision may not be taken, unless:

 it is published in the Forward Plan;
 5 clear days have lapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and
 if the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet, 5 clear days notice of the meeting 

has been given.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though 
they have not been included in the Forward Plan in accordance with Rule 26 (General Exception) 
and Rule 28 (Special Urgency) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules.

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle L20 
7AE or accessed from the Council's website: www.sefton.gov.uk 

 Council Constitution
 Forward Plan
 Reports on the Key Decisions to be taken
 Other documents relating to the proposed decision may be submitted to the decision making 

meeting and these too will be made available by the contact officer named in the Plan
 The minutes for each Key Decision, which will normally be published within 5 working days 

after having been made

Some reports to be considered by the Cabinet/Council may contain exempt information and will 
not be made available to the public. The specific reasons (Paragraph No(s)) why such reports are 
exempt are detailed in the Plan and the Paragraph No(s) and descriptions are set out below:-

Page 67

Agenda Item 9

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX B

2

1. Information relating to any individual
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 

 authority holding that information)
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or        
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter  arising between the authority or a 
Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the Authority
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in 
legal proceedings
6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes a) to give under any enactment a notice 
under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed  on a person; or b) to make an order or 
direction under any enactment
7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime
8. Information falling within paragraph 3 above is not exempt information by virtue of that 
paragraph if it is required to be registered under—

(a) the Companies Act 1985;
(b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974;
(c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992;
(d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978;
(e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or
(f) the Charities Act 1993.

9.Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for which the local 
planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning General Regulations 1992
10. Information which—

(a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and
(b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 above,is exempt 

information if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Cabinet and Council which are held 
at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle or the Town Hall, Lord Street, Southport.  The dates and 
times of the meetings are published on www.sefton.gov.uk or you may contact the Democratic 
Services Section on telephone number 0151 934 2068.

NOTE:  
For ease of identification, items listed within the document for the first time will appear shaded.

Dwayne Johnson
Chief Executive

Page 68

Agenda Item 9

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX B

3

FORWARD PLAN INDEX OF ITEMS

Item Heading Officer Contact
Sefton Integrated Care Partnership Eleanor Moulton eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX B

4

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Sefton Integrated Care Partnership  
A report to present to Cabinet an update following the report 
it received in April 2021 on the progress towards a Sefton 
Integrated Care Partnership to meet the requirements of the 
Health and Care Bill, with effect from the 1st April 2022.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 4 Nov 2021 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 07/10/2021 to 
04/11/2021.  Reason: To enable further consideration of the 
matter taking into account national developments expected 
in September

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

The Strategic Task and Finish Group includes 
representation from: 
Elected Members
Sefton CVS 
NHS South Sefton and Southport and Formby CCG's
Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust 
Alder Hey Children's NHS Foundation Trust 
Southport and Ormskirk Hospitals NHS Trust 
Healthwatch Sefton 

Method(s) of Consultation The design of the proposed Sefton Integrated Care 
Partnership has been overseen by the Strategic Task and 
Finish Group with membership that is representative of key 
partners in Sefton

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Sefton Integrated Care Partnership

Contact Officer(s) details Eleanor Moulton eleanor.moulton@sefton.gov.uk

Page 70

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX C

UPDATE REPORT FROM HEALTHWATCH – 19 OCTOBER 2021

Access to NHS Dental Care
Following the update to the committee, local Healthwatch organisations have also met 
with NHS England to continue the dialogue about access. Outcomes from the meeting 
included a discussion with NHS 111 to ask that they stop signposting residents to 
Healthwatch and that we would support by utilising the communications toolkit which will 
be launched in the coming weeks. We are undertaking our monthly mapping of local 
access and updated information can be found on our homepage 
www.healthwatchsefton.co.uk 

Ophthalmology services 
We have recently met with the commissioner for ophthalmology services and have 
discussed the current pathways at Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust. We have 
also been updated on the procurement plans and we have put a plan in place for local 
services to also gain updates via our Community Champion Networks, the local 
commissioner presenting an update at future meetings. 

GP Access
We continue to hear from patients about their frustrations in accessing services and the 
way in which this differs practice to practice. We continue to hold online engagement 
sessions with local residents and predominantly feedback relates to primary care. We 
are working with Healthwatch Knowsley and Liverpool on some joint messaging and will 
be supporting Primary Care Networks to engage on this issue with our community 
champion organisations.  

Waiting for hospital care
We are taking part in a national campaign to gather feedback on peoples experiences of 
waiting for NHS Care. The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in many people having 
their operations, treatment and appointments cancelled or delayed. The NHS had to 
postpone non-urgent elective care treatment when the pandemic hit, freeing up inpatient 
and critical care capacity. While this helped medical staff respond to the crisis, it has 
resulted in a huge backlog of people waiting for treatment. The latest data shows that 
the number of people waiting for routine operations and procedures in England is at its 
highest level since 2007 – currently at 5.45 million. We have the survey open locally and 
this can be accessed here 

NHS 111 First pathway. 
The commissioner for this service attended our South and Central Sefton Community 
Champion Network (September) to feedback on the local experiences shared and to 
provide an update. We were provided with the current picture for Sefton:

 833 (18%) increase in calls each month to NHS 111 First since implementation.
 Over 150 residents every month are now able to access more services through 

NHS 111 such as walk-in centres and community services that previously would 
have had an ambulance response.  

Page 71

Agenda Item 9

http://www.healthwatchsefton.co.uk/
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/HWS_Waiting_For_NHS_Treatment


APPENDIX C

 50 of the 150 residents are managed virtually or over the telephone by a 
clinician.  

 Around 100 more residents each month are directed to community pharmacies to 
manage their ailment and avoid A&E, walk-ins or other urgent care services.  

 20-30 residents per month now access the mental health 24/7 crisis line with 
routes into other mental health services to reduce risk of crisis.  

We have now received a response from Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust to the case study we provided (NHS 111 Accident and Emergency pathway) and 
we are currently discussing an option to work with the department to improve the 
pathway.  

Day Opportunities Consultation 
Healthwatch will be supporting with this by sharing consultation information as widely as 
possible and also ensuring that there are updates and a presentation made to 
Community Champion networks. If capacity allows, we will also support in a number of 
the online events. 

Sefton Mental Health Review 
We have a session booked in (27th October) to gain an update on the review. Stephen 
Williams (Director of Strategic Partnerships - NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS 
Southport and Formby CCG) will be providing the update. We have previously shared 
feedback about the crisis pathway and how it is unclear how support can be accessed. 

Diane Blair BA (Hons) MSc 
Manager
0151 920 0726 ext 236

You can receive newsletters and updates by signing up here

Don’t forget our Healthwatch Sefton Signposting can help you find the right Health or Social 
care services.  Call free today for independent up-to-date information.   
Freephone:0800 206 1304 

Page 72

Agenda Item 9

https://healthwatchsefton.co.uk/get-involved/online-membership/


APPENDIX C

Healthwatch Sefton 
Sefton Council for Voluntary Service (CVS)
3rd Floor, Suite 3B
North Wing, Burlington House,
Crosby Road North, Waterloo, L22 0LG

www.healthwatchsefton.co.uk 

    

Page 73

Agenda Item 9

http://www.healthwatchsefton.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust
	5 Adult Safeguarding
	6 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report
	7 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider Performance Dashboard
	8 Cabinet Member Reports
	Adult Social Care - Oct 2021
	Final Cabinet Member Update for OS October 2021

	9 Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan
	Appendix A Work Prog 2021-22
	Appendix B KDFP
	Appendix C Healthwatch Update


